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The Department of Environmental Protection (Department) hereby adopts proposed amendments to the Toxic Catastrophe Prevention Act (TCPA) Program rules at N.J.A.C. 7:31-1.5 and 11.4 and a new rule at N.J.A.C. 7:31-11.5.  The adopted amendments and new rule identify violations of the TCPA Program rules as either minor or non-minor to provide grace periods in accordance with P.L. 1995, c. 296, N.J.S.A. 13:1D-125 et seq., commonly known as the Grace Period Law.



The adopted amendments also update the TCPA penalty provisions at N.J.A.C. 7:31-11.4(c), Table III to reflect recent amendments to 40 C.F.R. Part 68, the Federal Accidental Release Prevention program, which are incorporated into the TCPA Program rules by reference.  The adopted amendments also correct several errors in the penalty amounts listed in Table III.  

The Department published the proposed amendments and new rule in the New Jersey Register at 37 N.J.R. 1595(a) on May 16, 2005.  The comment period for the proposal closed on July 15, 2005.  

Summary of Hearing Officer’s Recommendations and Agency Responses:


On June 15, 2005, a public hearing was held at 22 South Clinton Avenue, 3rd Floor, in

Trenton, New Jersey. 
Paul Baldauf, P.E., Chief, Bureau of Release Prevention, served as the hearing officer.  One person attended the hearing and presented oral comments.  The hearing officer recommended that the Department adopt the amendments and new rule as proposed with the changes described in the summary of public comments and agency responses, below.  The Department has accepted the Hearing Officer's recommendations.  A record of the public hearing is available for inspection in accordance with applicable law by contacting: 

Department of Environmental Protection

Office of Legal Affairs

Attn: DEP Docket No. 13-05-04/440 

P.O. Box 402

Trenton, New Jersey 08625-0402.

Summary of Public Comments and Agency Responses:


The following persons timely submitted written and/or oral comments:

1. Rick Engler, New Jersey Work Environment Council

2. Anthony Russo, Chemistry Council of New Jersey


The timely submitted comments and the agency's responses are summarized below.  The number in parentheses after each comment identifies the respective commenters listed above.

General Comments

1. COMMENT: The Grace Period Law should not have been passed and the Grace Period rules should not be adopted.  The Grace Period rules will weaken the Toxic Catastrophe Prevention Act (TCPA) requirements, which are of particular concern at this time when there is a need for heightened security at facilities covered by the TCPA program.  The Department should further consult with the Domestic Security Preparedness Task Force and the Governor’s office to delay implementation of the TCPA Grace Period rules. (1)

RESPONSE: On December 22, 1995, the Legislature enacted P.L. 1995, c. 296, N.J.S.A. 13:1D-125 et seq., commonly known as the Grace Period Law, which requires the establishment of procedures to ensure the consistent application of grace (compliance) periods for minor violations of certain environmental statutes.  Pursuant to that law, the Department is statutorily mandated to designate, through rulemaking, certain types of violations of rules that implement 16 environmental statutes, including the TCPA, as minor or non-minor.  Designating certain violations of the TCPA as minor does not weaken the TCPA rules because only those violations that meet the criteria of the Grace Period Law may be designated as minor.  The Department carefully evaluated every TCPA rule violation and only designated those violations as minor that meet the criteria for minor violations set forth in the Grace Period Law.  The TCPA rules do not include security measures.  Accordingly, the Department did not need to confer with the Domestic Security Preparedness Task Force regarding the adoption of the Grace Period violation designations. 

2. COMMENT: Compliance with all environmental statutes and regulations is something that members of the regulated community take seriously.   The enforcement process within the New Jersey Department of Environmental Protection (NJDEP) can be, at times, arbitrary and capricious.  When the New Jersey Legislature enacted the Grace Period Law in 1995, the intent was to bring more clarity and certainty to the enforcement process.  The intent was also to focus and concentrate resources on true environmental hazards and violations.  The purpose of this act was to identify violations that are administrative in nature, that pose no threat or harm to the public and/or to the environment and to apply what is known as a “grace period” to come back into compliance without fear of penalty.  This saves time and money and avoids needless drawn out court cases.  The commenter thanks the NJDEP for pursuing these amendments and wants to thank the TCPA program for allowing the commenter to participate in the rulemaking process. (2)  

RESPONSE: The Department acknowledges this comment in support of the TCPA Grace Period rules.

Comments on Individual Violations

3. COMMENT: Violation 22, failure to document the names or positions of the people who have been assigned responsibility for implementing individual requirements of 40 C.F.R. 68, incorporated at N.J.A.C. 7:31, and define the lines of authority through an organization chart or a similar document, should be listed as a non-minor violation.  Documenting who is the key person in charge appears to be incredibly important.  It’s a matter of documenting and not just assigning it. (1)

RESPONSE: The Department has reviewed this violation and has determined that it qualifies as a minor violation pursuant to the Grace Period Law at N.J.S.A. 13:1d-129(b) because documenting the assigned responsibilities poses minimal risk to the public health, safety and natural resources, does not materially and substantially undermine or impair the goals of the TCPA program; and is capable of being corrected and compliance achieved within the time prescribed by the Department.  The Department agrees with the commenter that assigning a qualified person or position that has the overall responsibility for the development and integration of the risk management program elements is a critical task.  Accordingly, failure to assign this responsibility is a non-minor violation (see violation 21).  However, failing to document to whom this responsibility has been assigned is easily corrected within the 30-day grace period.   A risk management program cannot be implemented unless someone has been assigned the responsibility for its implementation.  However, if the program is being implemented, it would be evident that someone has been appointed to the task.  Moreover, if the responsibility has been assigned, it is not difficult to produce documentation, such as internal company memoranda or job descriptions that memorialize the assignment.  Accordingly, failing to document the name of the person responsible for program implementation does not jeopardize the actual implementation of a risk management program. Therefore, the violation will remain listed as a minor violation in Table III of N.J.A.C. 7:31-11.4(c).

4. COMMENT: Violation 23, failure to include a documentation plan in the management system, should be listed as a minor violation. This violation is administrative in nature and fits the description of “minor violation” as described in the Grace Period Law.  Failure to have a documentation plan (where documents are located) is something that does not pose a threat to the environment or to the public and should this violation be discovered, it should be given a grace period during which to comply without fear of a monetary penalty. (2)

RESPONSE: The Department agrees that this violation is administrative in nature and has, therefore, modified N.J.A.C. 7:31-11.4(c), Table III, on adoption to designate violation number 23 as minor.  The length of the grace period is 30 days.  The Department has designated similar administrative violations as minor.  See, for example, violation 288 in Table III of N.J.A.C. 7:31-11.4(c), for violation of N.J.A.C. 7:31-4.3(b)6.   Violation 288 regards failure to provide a table of contents or a system to index the standard operating procedures.  The Department determined that this violation meets the criteria for classification as a minor violation; however, failure to provide the procedures themselves is non-minor.  The documentation plan, which is a requirement at 40 CFR 68.15 as incorporated with changes at N.J.A.C. 7:31-1.1(c)5i, is a similar type of document to the standard operating procedure index.  It provides a means to identify all the risk management program documents at the site.

5. COMMENT: Violation 78, failure to maintain records of off-site consequence analyses, should be listed as a minor violation since this is a recordkeeping item only. (2)

RESPONSE: The Department has reviewed this violation and has determined that it does not meet the criteria for classification as a minor violation set forth in the Grace Period Law at N.J.S.A. 13:1d-129(b) because failing to maintain records of off-site consequence analyses materially and substantially undermines or impairs the goals of the TCPA program and is not capable of being corrected and compliance achieved within the time prescribed by the Department.  Without these records, which are to be kept at the site, there is no way to verify that the owner or operator actually performed a valid off-site consequence analysis, which is intended to show the potential off-site impact of EHS releases under worst case and alternative release scenarios.  Therefore, the violation will remain listed as a non-minor violation in Table III of N.J.A.C. 7:31-11.4(c).

6. COMMENT: Violation 163, failure to submit within 90 days of the third anniversary date and subsequent third anniversary date, a triennial report to the Department reflecting the risk management program activities for the 36-month period ending on the anniversary date, should be listed as a non-minor violation.  Some of the work required to be performed at the site for implementation of the owner or operator's risk management program, which is required to be summarized in the triennial report, may not have been completed by the owner or operator.  If the period for submitting the triennial report is extended by treating it as a minor violation, the time period to correct that incomplete risk management program work at the owner or operator's site also will be extended.  This same comment applies to violation 388, which is an analogous violation for annual reports for a Program 3 process. (1)

RESPONSE: The Department has reviewed violations 163 and 388 and has determined that they meet the criteria for classification as minor violations set forth in the Grace Period Law at N.J.S.A. 13:1d-129(b).  The Department disagrees that providing a grace period would provide a de facto extension of time during which to correct incomplete risk management program work.  The triennial report (for a Program 2 process) and annual report (for a Program 3 process) summarize the owner or operator's implementation of the risk management program over the previous three year or one year period, respectively.  The reports provide a summary of the implementation status of the risk management program and summarize complete and incomplete work.  Whether the work has actually been completed is documented in the compliance audit (which is submitted to the Department with the annual/triennial report).  See 40 CFR 68.79 (Program 3 processes) and 40 CFR 68.58 (Program 2 processes).  However, failure to complete a compliance audit in a timely fashion is a non-minor violation (see violation 147).  Accordingly, submittal of the annual/triennial report to the Department is administrative in nature.  Failure to timely submit the reports poses minimal risk to the public health, safety and natural resources, does not materially and substantially undermine or impair the goals of the TCPA program, and is capable of being corrected and compliance achieved within the time prescribed by the Department.  Therefore, the violations will remain listed as a minor violation in Table III of N.J.A.C. 7:31-11.4(c).  

7. COMMENT: Violation 167, failure to include in the triennial report some extraordinarily hazardous substance (EHS) accidents that occurred during the previous three years, including the EHS involved and the amount released, if these facts could have been reasonably determined based on the information retained through the investigation, should be listed as a non-minor violation.  This is at the core of the TCPA Program requirements that this information should be there in a timely fashion. (1)

RESPONSE: The Department agrees with the commenter that the reporting of EHS accidents is one of the means that the Department uses to effect the general purpose of the TCPA rules as codified at  N.J.A.C. 7:31-1.3(a).  However, failure to include in the triennial report a summary of an EHS accident that occurred during the previous three years for Program 2 processes (see N.J.A.C. 7:31-3.3(b)4) does not materially or substantially undermine the purpose of the TCPA rules.  The triennial report is a report that contains a summary of accidents that occurred in the previous three years.  However, the triennial report is not the primary means of notifying the Department and the public of the occurrence of an EHS accident.  Rather, pursuant to 40 CFR 68.60, incorporated with modifications at N.J.A.C. 7:31-3.1(c)7 and 8, a complete EHS accident investigation report must be completed and filed at the site.  The accident investigation must begin no later than 48 hours after the incident, and the investigation and report must be completed in a timely manner.  Violations associated with failure to complete the EHS accident investigation report are non-minor.  See violations 154 through 158.  Also, pursuant to N.J.A.C. 7:31-5.2(b)4iii, owners or operators must immediately notify the Department's communication center of EHS releases unless the release meets one of the following criteria:  it has no potential offsite impact (or has no potential impact beyond the property boundary of the industrial complex), it results in no actual or potential injuries or fatalities at the stationary source, or it does not activate the emergency response plan.  Violations associated with these reporting requirements are also non-minor.  See violations 439 through 441.  Therefore, the violation regarding including the summary of EHS accidents in the triennial report will remain listed as a minor violation in Table III of N.J.A.C. 7:31-11.4(c).

8. COMMENT: Violation 174, failure to submit to the Department, at least 90 days prior to the date the equipment was scheduled to be placed into extraordinarily hazardous substance (EHS) service, updates of the documentation as required by N.J.A.C. 7:31-3.4(a)1 on a new Program 2-covered process at a stationary source for which there is no previously approved risk management program, should be listed as a non-minor violation.  This same comment applies to violation 403, which is an analogous violation for a Program 3 process.  This violation involves the TCPA program’s ability to approve the start up of new covered processes.  If an owner or operator has updates of information, it should be done in a timely fashion without an additional delay of thirty days.  This grace period should not be allowed unless the Department can argue that the owner or operator cannot start up unless all the information completely has been submitted.  The rule should not be revised in a way that would weaken the ability of the TCPA Program to prevent a start up in the absence of all relevant updated information. (1)

RESPONSE: The Department has reviewed these violations and has determined that they meet the criteria for classification as minor violations set forth in the Grace Period Law at N.J.S.A. 13:1d-129(b).  Failure to submit the updated documentation specified in these rule requirements prior to construction and startup of a new covered process poses minimal risk to the public health, safety and natural resources, does not materially and substantially undermine or impair the goals of the TCPA program, and is capable of being corrected and compliance achieved within the time prescribed by the Department.  The owner or operator may not commence construction or startup without prior written approval from the Department.  See N.J.A.C. 7:31-3.4.  Approval will not be given if these updates have not been submitted.  If an owner or operator without an approved risk management program does construct and start up a new covered process without Department approval, it is a non-minor violation.  See violation 172.  Therefore, the violations will remain listed as a minor violation in Table III of N.J.A.C. 7:31-11.4(c).

9. COMMENT: Violations 181 through 189, failure to prepare a report for a hazard review and include all required information, should be listed as minor violations.  These violations do not address conducting a hazard review, but rather they address preparing reports, which in itself is administrative. (2)  

RESPONSE: The Department has reviewed these violations and has determined that they do not meet the criteria for classification as minor violations set forth in the Grace Period Law at N.J.S.A. 13:1d-129(b).  Failure to prepare the hazard review report poses more than a minimal risk to the public health, safety and natural resources and materially and substantially undermines or impairs the goals of the TCPA program.  Without this report, there is no verification that the owner or operator performed the hazard review study.  Performance of the hazard review study, and completion of the hazard review report, are important for the owner or operator to identify potential release scenarios and take appropriate actions to reduce the risk of a release.  Therefore, the violations will remain listed as non-minor in Table III of N.J.A.C. 7:31-11.4(c).
10. COMMENT: Violation 190, failure to retain all hazard review reports, should be listed as a minor violation since this violation is administrative in nature. (2)

RESPONSE: The Department has reviewed this violation and has determined that it does not qualify as a minor violation under the Grace Period Law at N.J.S.A. 13:1d-129(b).  Failing to retain all hazard review reports materially and substantially undermines or impairs the goals of the TCPA program and is not capable of being corrected and compliance achieved within the time prescribed by the Department.   As mentioned above, without the hazard review report, there is no verification that the owner or operator performed the hazard review study.  Performance of the hazard review study, and completion of the hazard review report, are important for the owner or operator to identify potential release scenarios and take appropriate recommended actions to reduce the risk of a release.  Therefore, the violation will remain listed as a non-minor violation in Table III of N.J.A.C. 7:31-11.4(c). 

11. COMMENT: Violations 246 through 254, failure to maintain documentation of process hazard analyses with risk assessments (PHA/RAs), should be listed as minor violations.  Failure to maintain documentation should be deemed minor.  In the event that documentation does not exist, facilities should be given a grace period to provide this documentation without fear of penalty. (2)

RESPONSE: The Department has reviewed these violations and has determined that they do not qualify as minor violations under the Grace Period Law at N.J.S.A. 13:1d-129(b). Failing to retain documentation of process hazard analyses with risk assessments materially and substantially undermines or impairs the goals of the TCPA program and is not capable of being corrected and compliance achieved within the time prescribed by the Department.  Failure to prepare and maintain the PHA/RA documentation poses more than a minimal risk to the public health, safety and natural resources and materially and substantially undermines or impairs the goals of the TCPA program.  Without this information, there is no verification that the owner or operator performed the study.  Performance of the PHA/RA and completion of the associated documentation are important for the owner or operator to identify potential release scenarios and take appropriate actions to reduce the risk of a release.  Therefore, the violations will remain listed as non-minor in Table III of N.J.A.C. 7:31-11.4(c).  

12. COMMENT: Violations 255 through 257, failure to prepare a report of process hazard analysis with risk assessment (PHA/RA), should be listed as minor violations.  These violations do not address conducting a PHA/RA, but rather they address preparing reports, which in itself is administrative. (2)

RESPONSE: The Department has reviewed these violations and has determined that they do not qualify as minor violations set forth in the Grace Period Law at N.J.S.A. 13:1d-129(b).  Failing to prepare the PHA/RA report is not merely administrative.  The violation materially and substantially undermines or impairs the goals of the TCPA program and is not capable of being corrected and compliance achieved within the time prescribed by the Department. Without this information, there is no verification that the owner or operator performed the study.  Performance of the PHA/RA and completion of the associated documentation are important for the owner or operator to identify potential release scenarios and take appropriate actions to reduce the risk of a release.  Therefore, the violations will remain listed as non-minor in Table III of N.J.A.C. 7:31-11.4(c).  

13. COMMENT: Violation 293, failure to prepare a record which contains the identity of the employee, the date of training, and the means used to verify that the employee understood the training, should be listed as a minor violation.  While we agree that failure to train employees constitutes a non-minor violation, we believe that failure to prepare a record is administrative in nature and should be deemed a minor violation.  If this violation is discovered, the facility should be given an opportunity to generate such a record to the satisfaction of the Department.  If the Department is not satisfied with the record, after the grace period has ended, it always has the right to issue a penalty. (2)   

RESPONSE: The Department has reviewed this violation and has determined that it does not qualify as a minor violation under the Grace Period Law at N.J.S.A. 13:1d-129(b).  The Department disagrees that a facility should be permitted to create this documentation after-the-fact.  To permit a facility to do so could encourage the facility to create documentation without having actually conducted the training, and that would materially and substantially undermine and impair the goals of the TCPA program.  Unlike the failure to document to whom responsibility for implementing a risk management plan has been assigned (see comment/response 3) which does not undermine the implementation of the risk management program, failing to document who has been trained could encourage the facility to skip the training  altogether and thereby undermine the purpose of this requirement.  Additionally, this information is not readily available from other sources, nor is it obvious from the fact that the program is being implemented, as is the case with the assignment of risk program implementation responsibility.  Therefore, the violation will remain listed as a non-minor violation in Table III of N.J.A.C. 7:31-11.4(c). 

14. COMMENT: Violation 348, failure to prepare a written report for pre-startup safety reviews, should be listed as a minor violation since this is administrative in nature. (2)

RESPONSE: The Department has reviewed this violation and has determined that it does not meet the criteria for classification as a minor violation set forth in the Grace Period Law at N.J.S.A. 13:1d-129(b). The Department disagrees that a facility should be permitted to create this documentation after-the-fact.  To permit a facility to do so could encourage the facility to create documentation without having actually conducted a pre-startup safety review, and that would materially and substantially undermine and impair the goals of the TCPA program and is not capable of being corrected and compliance achieved within the time prescribed by the Department.  Safety and incident prevention are at the core of the TCPA program.  As with the training documentation discussed in comment/response 13 above, documentation of pre-startup safety review cannot be created after-the-fact, as information that is required to be documented can only be gathered and recorded during the review itself.  Therefore, the violation will remain listed as a non-minor violation in Table III of N.J.A.C. 7:31-11.4(c).

15. COMMENT: Violations 353 and 360, failure to prepare an audit report or an incident investigation report, respectively, should be listed as minor violations.  These violations do not address failure to do the actual work.  They are paperwork items and, therefore, should be changed to minor violations. (2)

RESPONSE: The Department has reviewed these violations and has determined that they do not meet the criteria for classification as minor violations set forth in the Grace Period Law at N.J.S.A. 13:1d-129(b).  Failure to prepare an audit report or incident investigation report are not minor paperwork activities.  It often takes considerable effort to prepare these reports. Moreover, they provide the only documentation that the audit or incident investigation was completed and contain the details of the audit or investigation. The violations pose more than a minimal risk to the public health, safety and natural resources.  They materially and substantially undermine or impair the goals of the TCPA program and they are not capable of being corrected and compliance achieved within the time prescribed by the Department. Therefore, the violations will remain listed as non-minor in Table III of N.J.A.C. 7:31-11.4(c). 

16. COMMENT: Violation 361, failure to prepare a report at the conclusion of the investigation which includes the date, time, or location of the extraordinarily hazardous substance (EHS) accident or potential catastrophic event, should be listed as a non-minor violation. These are essential facts. (1)

RESPONSE: The Department has reviewed this violation and has determined that it qualifies as a minor violation under the Grace Period Law at N.J.S.A. 13:1d-129(b).  Although the Department has determined that failure to prepare the overall report is a non-minor violation (see violation 360), the failure to include the date, time, or location in the report is minor. It is unlikely that an accident can be documented without stating the date, time, or location.  Moreover, this information is generally first recorded on incident log or notification sheets, and is then transferred to the final report from these sheets (see for example, N.J.A.C. 7:31-5.2(b)4i, which contains the elements of an EHS accident report).  Therefore, the violation will remain listed as a minor violation in Table III of N.J.A.C. 7:31-11.4(c).

17. COMMENT: Violation 362, failure to prepare a report at the conclusion of the extraordinarily hazardous substance (EHS) accident or potential catastrophic event investigation which includes the date the investigation began, should be listed as a non-minor violation.  This is a critical issue because it is our experience, and we believe also the experience of the Chemical Safety Board, that the timeliness of accident and catastrophic event investigation is absolutely critical.  It is important that an accident be investigated soon after its occurrence before conditions such as weather or removal of items have changed, thus making the investigation less effective. (1)

RESPONSE: The Department has reviewed this violation and has determined that it meets the criteria for classification as a minor violation set forth in the Grace Period Law at N.J.S.A. 13:1d-129(b). Although the Department has determined that failure to prepare the overall report is a non-minor violation, the failure to include this information in the report is minor. The violation poses minimal risk to the public health, safety and natural resources.  It does not materially and substantially undermine or impair the goals of the TCPA program and is capable of being corrected and compliance achieved within the time prescribed by the Department.   Regarding timeliness of the accident investigation, the accident investigation must begin no later than 48 hours after the incident, and the investigation and report must be completed in a timely manner; failure to comply with this is a non-minor violation.  See violation 358.  Therefore, the violation will remain listed as a minor violation in Table III of N.J.A.C. 7:31-11.4(c). 

18. COMMENT: Violations  363 through 365, failure to include specified information in an incident investigation report, should be listed as minor violations since they are paperwork items. (2)

RESPONSE:  The Department has reviewed these violations and has determined that they do not qualify as minor violations under the Grace Period Law at N.J.S.A. 13:1d-129(b).  Violation 363 involves (1) the failure to prepare a report at the conclusion of the EHS accident or potential catastrophic event investigation, which includes a description of the EHS accident or potential catastrophic event in chronological order providing all the relevant facts; (2) failure to include the identity, amount and duration of the EHS release when these facts could reasonably be determined based on the information obtained through the EHS accident or potential catastrophic event investigation; or (3) failure to identify consequences of the EHS accident or potential catastrophic event, including the number of evacuees, injured, fatalities, or the impact on the community.  Violation 364 involves the failure to prepare a report at the conclusion of the investigation which includes the factors that contributed to the EHS accident or potential catastrophic event and an identification of basic and contributory causes, either direct or indirect.  Violation 365 involves the failure to prepare a report at the conclusion of the EHS accident or potential catastrophic event investigation which includes any recommendations resulting from the investigation to prevent a recurrence.  These activities, and the reporting of them, are the most crucial aspects of the entire accident investigation.  The violations pose more than a minimal risk to the public health, safety and natural resources.  They materially and substantially undermine or impair the goals of the TCPA program and are not capable of being corrected and compliance achieved within the time prescribed by the Department.  Therefore, the violations will remain listed as non-minor violations in Table III of N.J.A.C. 7:31-11.4(c). 

19. COMMENT: Violation 366, failure to prepare a report at the conclusion of the accident or potential catastrophic event investigation which includes the names and positions of the investigators, should be listed as a non-minor violation.  It is important for the Department to know who undertook the investigation. (1) 

RESPONSE: The Department has reviewed this violation and has determined that it qualifies as a minor violation under the Grace Period Law at N.J.S.A. 13:1d-129(b). Although the Department has determined that failure to prepare the overall report is a non-minor violation, the failure to include the names and positions of the investigators in the report is minor. The violation poses minimal risk to the public health, safety and natural resources.  It does not materially and substantially undermine or impair the goals of the TCPA program and is capable of being corrected and compliance achieved within the time prescribed by the Department.  Therefore, the violation will remain listed as a minor violation in Table III of N.J.A.C. 7:31-11.4(c). 

20. COMMENT: Violation 371, failure to develop a written plan of action regarding the implementation of the employee participation required by 40 C.F.R. 68.83 as incorporated at N.J.A.C. 7:31-4.1(a), should be listed as a non-minor violation.  If the employee participation plan is developed and implemented only after it was discovered as a violation, then a whole series of inputs and recommendations from employees may never have been considered in the first place.  Also, it may affect subsequent accident investigations. (1) 

RESPONSE: The Department has reviewed this violation and agrees with the commenter that it does not qualify as a minor violation under the Grace Period Law at N.J.S.A. 13:1d-129(b).   The violation would materially and substantially undermine or impair the goals of the TCPA program, and the activities involved with the employee participation plan would not be capable of being corrected and compliance achieved within the time prescribed by the Department.  For example, if employees were not included in a process hazard analysis with risk assessment study and an accident subsequently occurred due to their lack of input, it would not be possible to go back in time to correct the violation.  The Department has designated similar violations as non-minor.  See, for example, violations 291 and 369 in Table III of N.J.A.C. 7:31-11.4(c), for violations of 40 CFR 68.71(b) and 40 CFR 68.81(f), incorporated at N.J.A.C. 7:31-4.1(a).  Violation 291 regards failure to provide refresher training to employees or failure to determine, in consultation with employees, the appropriate frequency of refresher training.  Violation 369 regards failure to review an accident investigation report with all affected personnel whose job tasks are relevant to the investigation findings.  These violations are similar in nature to the employee participation requirement of violation 371.  Therefore, the Department has modified N.J.A.C. 7:31-11.4(c), Table III, on adoption to designate violation number 371 as non-minor and to delete the grace period.

21. COMMENT: Violation 372, failure to consult with employees and their representatives on the conduct and development of process hazards analyses with risk assessments and on the development of the other elements of process safety management in this rule, should be listed as a non-minor violation. If the input from employees is not received during the initial study period of the process hazard analysis with risk assessment, the entire study would have to be repeated. (1)

RESPONSE: The Department has reviewed this violation and agrees with the commenter that it does not qualify as a minor violation under the Grace Period Law at N.J.S.A. 13:1d-129(b). The violation would materially and substantially undermine or impair the goals of the TCPA program, and the activities involved with the employee participation plan would not be capable of being corrected and compliance achieved within the time prescribed by the Department.  For example, if employees were not included in a process hazard analysis with risk assessment study and an accident subsequently occurred due to their lack of input, it would not be possible to go back in time to correct the violation. The Department has designated similar violations as non-minor.  See, for example, violations 291 and 369 in Table III of N.J.A.C. 7:31-11.4(c), for violations of 40 CFR 68.71(b) and 40 CFR 68.81(f) incorporated at N.J.A.C. 7:31-4.1(a). Violation 291 regards failure to provide refresher training to employees or failure to determine, in consultation with employees, the appropriate frequency of refresher training.  Violation 369 regards failure to review an accident investigation report with all affected personnel whose job tasks are relevant to the investigation findings.  These violations are similar in nature to the employee participation requirement of violation 371.  Therefore, the Department has modified N.J.A.C. 7:31-11.4(c), Table III, on adoption to designate violation number 372 as non-minor and to delete the grace period.

22. COMMENT: Violation 373, failure to provide to employees and their representatives access to process hazard analyses with risk assessments and to all other information required to be developed under this rule, should be listed as a non-minor violation. (1) 

RESPONSE: The Department has reviewed this violation and has determined that it qualifies as a minor violation under the Grace Period Law at N.J.S.A. 13:1d-129(b).  As discussed in response to comments 20 and 21, the Department agrees that the failure to develop a written plan of action regarding the implementation of the employee participation required by 40 C.F.R. 68.83 as incorporated at N.J.A.C. 7:31-4.1(a) (violation 371), and the failure to consult with employees and their representatives on the conduct and development of process hazards analyses with risk assessments employee involvement (violation 372) should be listed as a non-minor violations.   These requirements involve including employees in plan development; employees cannot be involved in plan development after the development process has been completed.  However, failing to provide employees with the information to which the commenter refers can be rectified at any time, including during the grace period afforded.  Accordingly, the violation poses minimal risk to the public health, safety and natural resources.  It does not materially and substantially undermine or impair the goals of the TCPA program and is capable of being corrected and compliance achieved within the time prescribed by the Department by giving employees access to the records.  Therefore, the violation will remain listed as a minor violation in Table III of N.J.A.C. 7:31-11.4(c). 
23. COMMENT: Violation 448, failure to provide an executive summary in the risk management plan (RMP), should be listed as a minor violation.  This violation is clearly administrative and poses no threat to either the environment or to the public. (2) 

RESPONSE: The Department agrees that this violation is administrative in nature and has, therefore, modified N.J.A.C. 7:31-11.4(c), Table III, on adoption to designate violation number 448 as minor.  The length of the grace period is 30 days. The Department has designated similar administrative violations as minor.  See, for example, violations 449 through 454 in Table III of N.J.A.C. 7:31-11.4(c), for violations of 40 CFR 68.155(a) through (f) incorporated at N.J.A.C. 7:31-7.1(a).  Violations 449 through 454 regard failure to provide every item of detailed information to be included in the executive summary.
24. COMMENT: Violation 449, failure to provide in the Risk Management Plan (RMP) executive summary a brief description of the stationary source and regulated substances handled, should be listed as a non-minor violation.  The RMP executive summaries are available through the Federal EPA at two designated meeting rooms in New Jersey.  However, it is our understanding that the New Jersey program requires more frequent updates.  We would not like to see this information omitted where it may not turn up in the Federal Program at the meeting rooms, and it would not be available for public review. (1) 

RESPONSE: The Department disagrees that the TCPA program requires more frequent updates.  In fact, the TCPA program does not require more frequent updates, of the RMP executive summary. The violation will remain listed as a minor violation in Table III of N.J.A.C. 7:31-11.4(c). 

25. COMMENT: Violation 472, failure to submit the chemical name in the off-site consequence analysis, should be listed as a non-minor violation. The efforts to get specific chemical name-identifying information date back to the 1960’s.   The position of the Labor Movement and the environmental community at that time was that, without the specific chemical names as opposed to trade names or code names, the public could not do the proper kind of analysis or research on the toxicology of a particular chemical.   Similarly, violations 473 through 481, 484, and 485, regarding data used in performing the off-site consequence analysis, should be listed as non-minor violations. (1)

RESPONSE: The Department has re-evaluated violation 472 and agrees with the commenter that it does not qualify as a minor violation under the Grace Period Law at N.J.S.A. 13:1d-129(b). Failure to provide the chemical name in the off-site consequence analysis could materially and substantially undermine or impair the goals of the TCPA program. The chemical name, as opposed to a chemical trade name or code name, is critical to identifying the chemical’s properties, including its toxicological properties, and this information will be needed in determining the proper response to a critical incident involving that chemical.  The chemical name is the official name universally utilized to identify a chemical and use of that name helps avoid confusion in the event of a critical incident.  Moreover, accurate identification of a particular chemical is critical to calculating the distance to endpoint in the offsite consequence analysis, and the public and environmental receptors within the distance to endpoint in the offsite consequence analysis.  The chemical name, the distance, and the receptors are the three pieces of information most critical in the performance of the off-site consequence analysis.  Accordingly, failure to submit the distance to endpoint (see violation 482) and failure to submit the public and environmental receptors within the distance to endpoint (see violation 483) are non-minor violations. Therefore, violation 472 in Table III at N.J.A.C. 7:31-1.4(c) will be changed to non-minor on adoption.

The Department has reviewed violations 473 through 481, 484, and 485 regarding other data used in performing the off-site consequence analysis, and has determined that these violations qualify as minor violations under the Grace Period Law at N.J.S.A. 13:1d-129(b). The data that are the subject of these violations is utilized by the owner or operator to calculate one of the three critical components of an off-site consequence analysis, distance to endpoint.  Distance to endpoint is then used to determine the public and environmental receptors within that distance.  Accordingly, if the owner or operator has properly calculated the distance to endpoint and identified the receptors within that distance, a failure to include the individual components used to calculate that distance can be supplied at a later date without posing a risk to the public health, safety and natural resources, or materially and substantially undermining or impairing the goals of the TCPA program. Lack of this information does not impair the Department’s ability to perform an immediate analysis of registrant information.  Therefore, these violations will remain listed as a minor violation in Table III of N.J.A.C. 7:31-11.4(c).

26. COMMENT: Violations 491 and 510, failure to include specified dates in a risk management plan  (RMP) for the most recent hazard review and process hazard analysis, respectively, should be listed as minor violations. (2)

RESPONSE: The Department agrees that these violations are minor because they are administrative in nature and has, therefore, modified N.J.A.C. 7:31-11.4(c), Table III, on adoption to designate violation numbers 491 and 510 as minor.  The length of the grace period is 30 days.  The Department has designated similar administrative violations as minor.  See, for example, violations 502 through 505 in Table III of N.J.A.C. 7:31-11.4(c), for violations of 40 CFR 68.170(h) through (k) incorporated at N.J.A.C. 7:31-7.1(a).  These violations are similar in that they all regard failure to specify completion dates for the most recent revision or review of various program procedures and the most recent completion dates of implementation of those procedures.
Federal Standards Analysis

N.J.S.A. 52:14b-1 et seq. (P.L. 1995, c. 65) and Executive Order No. 27 (1994) require State agencies that adopt, readopt, or amend any rule or regulation that exceeds any Federal standards or requirements to include in the rulemaking document a Federal Standards Analysis.  

The adopted amendments and new rule contain no provision or standard that exceeds any standards or requirements imposed by Federal law.  The adopted amendments include updates of Table III to incorporate penalties for rule revisions to 40 C.F.R. Part 68 that were adopted by the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency and published in the April 9, 2004 Federal Register (see 69 Fed. Reg. 18819).  These rule revisions were automatically incorporated by reference into N.J.A.C. 7:31 as provided by N.J.A.C. 7:31-1.4(a) through (g).

Full text of the adopted amendments and new rules follows (additions to proposal indicated in boldface with asterisks *thus*; deletions from proposal indicated in brackets with asterisks  *[thus]* ):  

7:31-1.5 State definitions

(No change from proposal)

7:31-11.4 Civil administrative penalty determination


(a) through (b) (No change from proposal.)

 
(c) The Department shall determine the amount of the civil administrative penalty for the offenses described in Table III below on the basis of the category of offense, the frequency of the violation, the type of violation as minor (M) or non-minor (NM), and the applicable grace period if the violation is minor, as follows:

TABLE III

Penalty in U.S. Dollars

By Offense Category


Categories of Offense
Cite
First

Offense
Second

Offense
Subsequent

Offenses 
Type of

Violation
Grace

Period

(days)

1.-22.  (No change from proposal.)

23.
Failure to include in the management system a documentation plan which: (1) provides a means of identifying all documentation required by this chapter; and (2) describes how the owner or operator of a covered process will store, maintain and update all documentation required by this chapter.  


40 CFR 68.15, 

N.J.A.C. 7:31-1.1(c)5i
2,000
4,000
10,000
*[NM]*

*M*
*30*

24.-370. (No change from proposal.)

371.
Failure to develop a written plan of action regarding the implementation of the employee participation required by 40 CFR 68.83 as incorporated at N.J.A.C. 7:31-4.1(a).  

 
40 CFR 68.83(a), 

N.J.A.C. 7:31-4.1(a)
2,000
4,000
10,000
*[M]*

*NM*
*[30]*

372.
Failure to consult with employees and their representatives on the conduct and development of process hazards analyses with risk assessments and on the development of the other elements of process safety management in this rule.   


40 CFR 68.83(b), 

N.J.A.C. 7:31-4.1(c)22
1,000
2,000
5,000
*[M]*

*NM*

*[30]*

373.-447.  (No change from proposal.)



448.
Failure to provide an executive summary in the RMP.
40 CFR 68.155 

N.J.A.C. 7:31-7.1(a)


1,000
2,000
5,000
*[NM]*

*M*
*30*

449.-471. (No change from proposal.)

472.
Failure to submit the chemical name in the off-site consequence analysis (OCA).


40 CFR 68.165(b)(1), 

N.J.A.C. 7:31-7.1(a)
1,000
2,000
5,000
*[M]*

*NM*

*[30]**[30]*

473.-490. (No change from proposal.) (No change from proposal.)

(No change from proposal.) (No change from proposal.)

491.
Failure to provide in the RMP the date of completion of the most recent hazard review or update for each Program 2 process.   


40 CFR 68.170(e), 

N.J.A.C. 7:31-7.1(a)
1,000
2,000
5,000
*[NM]*

*M*
*30*

492.-509. (No change from proposal.)



510.
Failure to provide in the RMP the date of completion of the most recent process hazard analysis or update and the technique used for each Program 3 process.   


40 CFR 68.175(e), 

N.J.A.C. 7:31-7.1(a)
1,000
2,000
5,000
NM*[NM]*

*M*
*30*

511.-596. (No change from proposal.)


(d)-(g) (No change from proposal.)

7:31-11.4 Grace period applicability; procedures

(a)-(d) (No change from proposal.)

Based on consultation with staff, I hereby certify that the above statements, including the Federal Standards Analysis addressing the requirements of Executive Order 27 (1994), permit the public to understand accurately and plainly the purpose and expected consequences of this adoption and new rule. I hereby authorize this adoption.

________________________

_____________________________

Date                                                                 Lisa P. Jackson, Commissioner

Department of Environmental Protection
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